
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

      
   1 October 2013 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 9 October 2013 

beginning at 
11:30 am* 
in the 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 
 

*PLEASE ARRIVE AT 10.45AM FOR THE JOINT PRESENTATIONS WITH THE 
BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ON MUSEUM 
ACCREDITATION AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND LEARNING 

 
TO: Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs Sollitt 

 County Councillors Davidovitz, Kyrle and Lyon 
Tom de Wit County Arts and Museums Service 
Tim Kelly Hampshire Arts and Museums Service 
Len Purchase Friends of Eastleigh Museum 
Jean Roberts-Jones One Community 
Guy Riddoch Area Co-ordinator 
  
  

Staff Contact: Julia Roy, Democratic Services Officer  
Tel: 023 8068 8133; Email: julia.roy@eastleigh.gov.uk  

   

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

 
Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 

Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



 

 

4. Budget Update    (Pages 15 - 16) 
 
5. Eastleigh Museum/Bursledon Windmill Draft Joint Management Agreement    

(Pages 17 - 34) 
 
6. Hampshire Solent Cultural Trust (verbal update)     
 
7. Date and Venue of Next Meeting     
 
 
 



 

 

EASTLEIGH MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 15 May 2013  (11:35 am – 12:35 pm) 
 

The meeting was held at the Civic Offices, Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
PRESENT: 

 
Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Bicknell, Irish and Mrs 
Sollitt 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillors Davidovitz and House 
 

 Tom de Wit - County Arts and Museums Service
 Tim Kelly - County Arts and Museums Service
 Guy Riddoch - Area Co-ordinator
 Jean Roberts-Jones - One Community 
   
Apologies for absence were received from Len Purchase, Friends of 
Eastleigh Museum 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED -  

 
That County Councillor Davidovitz be appointed Chairman of the Committee 
for the year 2013-14. 

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
 
 RESOLVED -  

 
That Councillor Irish be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Committee for the 
year 2013-14. 

 
3. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2012 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 
4. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 The Area Curator introduced a report detailing activities and events at the 

Museum between October 2013 and March 2013.   
 
Although still less than a year since the start of the new operation with One 
Community, new relationships had been forged and a slightly different 
character of the service was beginning to be seen. 
 
This was demonstrated in the Cool Britannia project, which had a strong 

Agenda Item 2

1



 

 

community element, showcasing the art work of young carers from Eastleigh 
and across Hampshire.  These young people were given the opportunity to 
work with artists and the time to develop and express their ideas, inspired by 
the Diamond Jubilee and Olympics of 2012.  The project involved the skills 
of the Arts and other Teams from the Museums Service, together with the 
community links brought to the service by One Community.     
 
This new partnership-driven approach was set to continue with future 
projects such as Visions of the Past, which would be delivered with 
Hampshire charity Open Sight. 
 
The Tea Tales exhibition between October 2012 and January 2013 had 
explored all aspects of tea, as well as showcasing some of the Museums 
Service’s ceramic collection.  
 
Then and Now used the photographic archives to find pictures of Eastleigh 
from the Victorian period forwards, and then five staff, volunteers from One 
Community and two photography students from Eastleigh College took 
photos of the same places today.  This created a fascinating exhibition of 
past and present, allowing people to see how the environment had changed 
and to share memories of the past. 
 
It was advised that the 45th anniversary of the last steam train through 
Eastleigh would take place in July 2013 and the Curator was given contact 
details of the Railway Works with a view to organising an event to mark this. 
 
The effects of both the closure in May 2012 and the Saturday closure 
between May and September were evident in the visitor numbers for the 
year, but there were some individual months showing very strong numbers, 
along with a general recovery towards the end of the year. 
 
The Collections Team had been heavily involved in preparing the 2013 
Accreditation submission to the Arts Council over the past six months.  This 
was the subject of a later item on the agenda for this meeting.  A “behind the 
scenes” day for volunteers at Chilcomb House had been hosted by the 
Team in the autumn, providing an opportunity to see the full extent of the 
collections and the great range of activities undertaken.  The biennial 
collections review had also been undertaken by the Collections Team during 
the autumn.  The Museum had been reviewed in November, when the 
condition of the objects and displays were checked and a plan prepared for 
improvement and general maintenance.  Security and emergency 
conservation coverage had also been reviewed. 
 
Community Engagement and Learning (CEL) officers had attended the 
Primary History Teachers’ Conference and Outdoor Learning Conference to 
liaise with and promote the offer to teachers.  Over the six month period 
under discussion, the CEL Team had worked with 10 school groups in the 
Museum, totalling 290 pupils.  Feedback from participating schools had 
been very positive. 
 

2



 

 

Other CEL work, in line with the Service Plan aim of widening participation, 
included a diverse programme of activities such as the Easter holiday self-
led offer, Museum Explorers, a box of newly devised family games to 
interact with the displays.  Work had also commenced with the Local History 
Society and Forum, the Eastleigh Family History Group and a group of One 
Community volunteers to put together the elements of the upcoming Meet 
the Victorians exhibition.  The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services advised 
that a presentation could be provided by the CEL Team at the next meeting, 
if the Committee considered this useful. 
 
The Chief Executive, One Community reported that there were now 20 
volunteers at the Museum, and four volunteers had gone on to obtain paid 
jobs.  The volunteers were mostly Eastleigh residents and they engaged 
very well with the County Museums staff, teachers and visitors to the 
Museum.  It had been found that children often visited as part of a school 
group and then returned at a weekend with their parents.  A community 
notice board and display area had been set up and, as part of the Heritage 
Lottery Funding, an oral history project was underway with local people.  
Exhibitions produced by One Community relating to local topics were set up 
in the exhibitions hall when it was not in use for special exhibitions.  The 
Museum was also A Safer Place and work was underway to encourage 
more groups to visit.  The Chief Executive, One Community was soon to 
give a presentation to the Alzheimers Society, with a view to making the 
Museum dementia-friendly for visiting groups.  The first anniversary of the 
partnership working was to take place on 28 May, with the launch of the 
information centre, and all Committee members were invited to the event. 
 
With regard to marketing, research had shown that more localised printed 
leaflets would be more effective than the previous County-wide brochure, 
and consequently 7,500 copies of the new “What’s On in Museums in the 
South East Region” had been distributed.  Promotion of events at the 
Windmill was provided on a monthly basis via the County Council’s cultural 
e-newsletter, Showcase, which now had 27,000 subscribers.  The Museums 
Service’s Facebook page now had over 900 “likes” and over 1,000 Twitter 
followers.  Postcodes continued to be collected from visitors to the Museum 
in order to obtain a current picture of the types of people visiting and where 
they come from. 
 
It was AGREED –  
 
(1) That the report be noted; and 
 
(2) That a presentation be provided by the Community Engagement and 

Learning Team at the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
5. FINANCIAL REPORT AND PROPOSED REVENUE BUDGET 2013-14 
 
 The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services tabled a revised report which 

showed the actual figures for the 2012/13 budget and provided details of the 
proposed 2013/14 budget.   

3



 

 

 
Actual figures for 2012/13 budget showed that the budget was on track.  
With regard to the 2013/14 budget, the partner contributions remained 
similar to the previous year and were proposed as £102,953 from 
Hampshire County Council (including Bursledon Windmill) and £30,000 from 
Eastleigh Borough Council.   
 
It was AGREED -  
 
That the proposed 2013/14 budget be approved and the constituent 
authorities notified of their requested contribution. 

 
6. JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ANNUAL AUDIT RETURN 
 
 The Strategic Manager, Visitor Services introduced a report concerning the 

annual return for the Joint Management Committee.   
 
An annual return was required by small relevant bodies with an annual 
turnover of £6.5m or less, summarising their annual activities at the end of 
each financial year.  The return comprised summary accounting statements 
for the year, the annual governance statement and the internal auditor’s 
report.  Once the return had been submitted and approved by external audit, 
their certificate and opinion was also included. 
 
The Audit Commission had completed their audit of the annual return for the 
year ended 31 March 2012 and it was their opinion that the information 
contained in the annual return was in accordance with proper practices and 
that no matters had come to their attention giving cause for concern that 
relevant legislation and regulatory requirements had not been met. 
 
BDO LLP had been appointed by the Audit Commission to audit the annual 
return of the JMC for five years from 2012/13, and BDO LLP’s performance 
would be monitored by the Audit Commission. 
  
It was AGREED -  
 
(1) That the report be noted; 
 
(2) That the accounting statement and governance statement for 

2011/12 be signed by the Chairman and the Clerk to the Committee. 
 
7. JOINT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 The Area Co-ordinator advised the Committee that the Agreement between 

the County and Borough Councils for the management of the Museum had 
now expired. A draft updating the Agreement had been drawn up, on which 
officers were currently working. 
 
It was AGREED -  
 

4



 

 

That officers from both authorities continue working on the updated 
Agreement, liaising with Members by e-mail. 

 
8. MUSEUMS ACCREDITATION 2013 
 
 The Visitor Services Manager introduced a report of the County Collections 

Team Manager which informed the Committee that the County Arts and 
Museums Service had submitted a Museum Accreditation Return for 
Eastleigh Museum (Acc No 1176) on 26 April 2013.  The report also 
summarised the aims and benefits of the scheme to the site and outlined the 
progress made. 
 
Accreditation was the UK standard for museums and galleries and was 
managed by the Arts Council in England.  It defined god practice and 
identified agreed standards, thereby encouraging development.   
 
In order to meet the Accreditation Standard, the Accreditation Panel 
required evidence on organisational health, collections and users and their 
experiences for each museum. 
 
Further details could be provided in a presentation by the Collections Team 
Manager at the next meeting of the Committee, should Members consider 
this appropriate. 
 
It was AGREED - 
 
(1) That the information provided on the Arts Council Museums 

Accreditation Scheme, the aims and benefits of the Scheme and the 
submission of the Accreditation Return for Eastleigh Museum be 
noted; and 

 
(2) That a presentation on the Scheme be provided by the Collections 

Team Manager at the next meeting of the Committee. 
 
9. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was agreed that the next meeting would be held on 9 October 2013 at 

11.30 am at the Civic Offices.   
 
The Bursledon Windmill JMC will take place at 9.30 am on 9 October and, to 
enable members of both JMCs to attend the presentations agreed at this 
meeting, the presentations will take place between the two meetings, at 
approximately 10.45 am.  

 
M5170 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



  

Committee: EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 9th October 2013 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Tom de Wit 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Providing a welcoming and Well maintained Museum 
 
 
1.1 Service Delivery 

During a period where service delivery continues to be a successful partnership for 
Hampshire County Council Arts & Museums, the outstanding points have been where the 
participation between partners, volunteers and other sections of the community has been 
highest. 
 
The exhibition programme throughout this time has had significant input from volunteers 
and community groups. 
 
The Then and Now exhibition showcased historic photographs from Hampshire’s 
collections alongside contemporary versions of the same images taken by local volunteers. 
 
One Community worked with Open Sight, a charity for people with visual impairments, to 
create the Visions of the Past exhibition which told the story of blind and partially sighted 
people in Hampshire since 1920 though people’s own stories. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Local community groups and volunteers made a huge contribution to the Meet the 

Victorians exhibition at Eastleigh Museum. But the whole town were involved in the 

Report on activities at or relating to Eastleigh Museum 

Covering period May to September 2013 

Hampshire children with visual impairment in the 1950s. 

These people’s  stories were told in Visions of the Past exhibition 

Agenda Item 3

7



opening event – The Victorians are in Town. Eastleigh stepped back in time, with local 
shops and businesses getting into the spirit with Victorian costumes. The Swan centre got 
involved by hosting a Victorian Fancy Dress competition and a Victorian policeman 
patrolling the centre, while the One Community team became an array of Victorian 
characters including Eastleigh’s own Queen Victoria. This event was co-ordinated by the 
Community Engagement and Learning Team and a report is provided in section 4. 
 

 
 
 
 
1.2 Visitor Figures 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2.1 Visitor figures table 
 

The visitor figures for the year to 

August show a consistent improvement 

on the previous year’s performance 

every month. 

 

The impact of the targeted community 

events can clearly be seen, and the 

Meet the Victorians event had an 

impact on the day and brought people 

into the museum on subsequent days. 

8



 
 

 
 

2 Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and related events 
 

2.1 Then and Now exhibition 

13 April to 25 June 
The exhibition team has searched our photographic archives to find pictures of Fareham from the 
Victorian period  forwards we then worked with Museum volunteers from Eastleigh Museum to take 
pictures of the same paces today. This lead to a fascinating exhibition of past and present allowing 
local people to see how there environment has changed and what has remained as well as share 
memories of the past. This proved a popular exhibition with locals and provoked a lot of discussion 
and comments. 

 

2.2 Meet the Victorians Exhibition 

27 Jul – 19 Oct 
This hands-on, multisensory exhibition about late-Victorian domestic life was targeted at families 
with young children and schools (especially KS2). The exhibitions team produced a core element, 
replicated across 6 venues while Community Engagement and Learning teams worked with local 
groups and individuals to add local elements (displays, panels, activities). We undertook formative 
evaluation using an online Hampshire-wide survey (with 434 respondents) which we used to steer 
our interpretation design and marketing strategy. Responses clearly showed a demand for 
interactive elements, play and handling with minimal text. The exhibition was designed to showcase 
the Museums Service’s Victorian collections using experience and context, rather than academic 
labelling, as the main interpretive tools. The Exhibition Technicians created Victorian roomsets 
furnished with replicas, artefacts from the collections and handling objects. Skilled museum 
volunteers at 3 sites made detailed period dolls houses (to our brief) to be used in the exhibition. 
The exhibition narrative centred around a fictional family based on detailed research done by the 
team. We liaised with collections staff in the selection, conservation and display of the objects. We 
produced a ‘Meet the Victorians’ website, providing extra information for visitors and schools, and 
text and audio downloads for teachers. We designed and printed the local materials to fit with the 
core brand, devised by an external graphic design company. We worked with Arts Centres and 
other council organisations on Victorian-themed mini displays and events around the county. Audio 
material was written by a scriptwriter in association with Library Services, and performed by a youth 
theatre company, recorded at Forest Arts Centre. Being aware of potential waste after the 
exhibition’s end, we incorporated sustainable and reusable materials and techniques – masking 
display cases, offering replicas to other sites, using reusable digital frames rather than copious 
printing, and using podcasts rather than on-site audio equipment.  

 

 
3 Caring for collections, promoting access, and providing specialist knowledge and 

advice 
 
 
3.1 Caring for collections 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 

2009 - 

2010 

2179 1864 1521 2574 2693 2046 2401 1714 1300 3087 3598 3236 28,213 

 

2010 – 

2011 

2372 1567 1780 2493 3205 2091 2349 1881 1151 1236 2109 1759 24,041  

 

2011 – 

2012 

1713 1408 1516 2022 2322 1805 1542 1351 1297 1140 1550 1321  18,987 

 

2012 – 

2013 

923 163 1153 1131 1640 1213 1153 2018 962 1094 1576 1236 

 

 

14,252 

 

2013 – 

2014 

1470 1523 1279 1405 2461 Total for year to 
August 8,138 

 

9



The Collections Team has been heavily involved in managing the 2013 Accreditation submission 
to the Arts Council over the last twelve months, which included the preparation of new collections 
management policies and plans. Having these collections policies and plans will ensure that 
Eastleigh Museum continues to be an ‘Accredited Museum’ benefiting from membership of the 
national scheme in many ways, including access to a greater range of funding opportunities.  
 
The Accreditation Assessor for the Arts Council has undertaken a preliminary review of the 
Eastleigh Museum return, and is planning to take the museum to the 19 September 2013 panel 
meeting. Subject to her approval of some additional information we were asked to provide 
concerning the management and security arrangements at Eastleigh, she would like to 
recommend that the museum is awarded full Accreditation.  
 
Objects relating to the Borough of Eastleigh in store at Chilcomb House Winchester have been 
monitored regularly during this period. The environmental conditions at the museum, including 
temperature and humidity, have been recorded throughout and were checked and found to be 
satisfactory in July.  
 
3.2 Promoting access and providing specialist knowledge and advice 
The Collections Team continued to find intriguing objects from the collections stored at Chilcomb 
House to feature in the Hampshire Hidden Treasure’s case. This serves to illustrate the diversity of 
the collections cared for by Hampshire County Council and that are available for exhibition at 
Eastleigh Museum.   
 
The Dinosaur display that was installed in January, which featured fossils from the Natural 
Sciences Collection collected by Reginald Walter Hooley (1866-1923) a businessman and 
honorary curator of Winchester Museum, was replaced in May by ceramics from the Archaeology 
Collection. 
 

  
One of Reginald Hooley’s dinosaur bones 
 
The ‘Victorians’ exhibition drew extensively on the expertise and the collections curated by the 
Photographic Collections Officer, the Keeper of Arts and the Keeper of Social and Industrial 
History. The Collections Officers also undertook all the conservation, mounting and packaging of 
the objects that were included in the show, which ranged from Victorian dolls and jigsaw puzzles 
to pots and pans.  
 
A similar range of specialist collections work is starting to be carried out in preparation for next 
year’s programme of activities to mark the 100th anniversary of the outbreak of the First World 
War. 
 
Research and conservation is also underway on the 14 cases of taxidermy from the Thomas 
Atkinson Cotton Collection that will be put on display at Eastleigh Museum from 16 November this 
year. This will be the first time they have been on display to the public for 60 years. This is a 
collection of British Birds created by a resident of Bishopstoke that was recently been brought 
back to Hampshire from Norfolk.  
 10



Thomas Atkinson Cotton (1856/7-1925), who lived at the Mount, collected the birds, his wife 
Charlotte painted the backgrounds and his brother Charles did the taxidermy. He built a museum 
at the Mount filled with over 1000 specimens and described as one of the finest natural history 
museums and aviaries in the county. The exhibition will also explore the history of the Mount itself, 
especially in the Cotton era, and will feature some of the herbarium as well as the birds. Eastleigh 
Museum staff are working closely with the Bishopstoke Local History Society. 

 
Research to date has shown that a photo of the case of merlins was used in Birds Beasts and 
Fishes of the Norfolk Broadland, as T A Cotton provided the 63 photographs for the book. The 
book was written by P H Emerson in 1895 so we now know that the case was made before this 
date.  
 

  
The Mount, Bishopstoke  Case of merlins from before 1895 
 

 
 

4 Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement 
 

4.1  Formal Education Provision 
 
 Over the 5 month period April to August 2013, the Learning and Community Engagement Team 

have worked with 7 school groups in the museum and 2 as outreach, a total of 252 pupils in 
school groups.  This made a total of 542 for the academic year which is up on last year (504). 

 

Date School Key Stage 
& Year 
Group 

No. of 
children 

Type of workshop 

24 April Scantabout Primary KS2, yr 4 27 Our Town in the Past 

13 May Crescent Primary KS2, yr 3 27 Home Front 

13 May Crescent Primary KS2, yr 3 25 Home Front 

14 May Crescent Primary KS2, yr 4 30 Home Front 

14 May Crescent Primary KS2, yr 4 27 Home Front 

20 May Fryern Infant KS1, yr 2 27 Precious Things OUTREACH 

20 May Fryern Infant KS2, yr 2 30 Precious Things OUTREACH 

24 June Nightingale Primary KS2, yr 6 31 Our Town in the Past 

24 June Nightingale Primary KS2, yr 5 28 Our Town in the Past 

 
During this quarter, the ACELO has developed, resourced and promoted new sessions linked to 
the ‘Meet The Victorians’ exhibition. These are KS2 ‘Meet The Eastleigh Victorians’ (looking at 
families and Victorian times in Eastleigh), and KS1’ Home Explorers’ and ‘Then & Now’. Uptake 
has been slow but there are some bookings for the autumn term. 
 
Impact evidence and general feedback is collected from all school sessions, to aid evaluation and 
service planning. All feedback was very positive, scoring 3 or 4 out of 4 in each category. 
“(The session) was an excellent hook into learning. I especially like census and map 
materials…Emma is very helpful and friendly” 
Teacher, Scantabout Primary School (KS2 Our Town in the Past – Local History) 11



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2  Community Engagement and Learning 

 
In line with the Service Plan aim of widening participation, a programme of activities was offered 
over the 5 month period.  A particular emphasis has been put on maintaining a good activity offer 
for local families.  422 people took part in the led activities.  The CEL Team also provided self-
led drop-in activities for children for the half term and summer holidays.  The figures below are 
for led activities and do not include participants in the self-led trails and games. 
 
 Activity/Event Target Audience Date No. of 

participants 

Game On! Board game 
making workshop linked to 
new games box in museum 

Families 4 April 32 

In the Frame frame making 
workshop linked to 
photographic exhibition 

Families 30 May 41 

The Victorians are in Town! 
Special activities for the 
opening of the Meet the 
Victorians exhibition 

Whole community 3 August 262 

Victorian Characters 
dressing up & puppet 
making workshop 

Families 15 August 54 

Stuck on Victorians 
decoupage workshop 

Families 29 August 33 

 
Additionally, the two CE&L Officers have been working with Local History groups, the Eastleigh 
Family History Group and a group of One Community Museum Volunteers, to put together the 
local elements of the Meet the Victorians exhibition. The “Eastleigh’s Victorian Journey” panel and 
the “Eye Spy Victorian Eastleigh” book were created using the expertise of local historian Barry 
Chinchen. The Victorian object display and family tree album for “Meet Our Victorians” was 
created with members of the local history groups, the family history group and One Community 
Volunteers, and resulted from a further 3 meetings or training sessions similar to those detailed in 
the last report. Local historians Barry Chinchen and Chris Humby also contributed expertise and 
images to the “Meet Eastleigh’s Victorians” games. 
 
The CEL Officers are now working with Chris Humby and the Bishopstoke History Society on 
elements of the Stuffed and MOUNTed exhibition opening in November, showcasing the 
taxidermy collection of Thomas Atkinson Cotton and the history of the Mount in his era. 
 
The highlight of the summer CEL programme at the museum has been the activities linked to the 
Meet the Victorians exhibition. The opening event on 3 August was organised in full partnership 
with One Community staff and volunteers, local history societies, Railway Preservation Society, 

 

Home Front school session  

in the museum 

12



Eastleigh Library (lots of family activities), town centre shops & businesses (turning back time in 
their window displays), and the Swan Centre (fancy dress competition and a Victorian Policeman 
to promote the exhibition). Two led family workshops followed during the holiday, and two expert 
talks for adults have been arranged for September. 

 
 

5 Marketing and Management 
 
 
Publicity and promotion: 
  
In June 2013 a south-east area What's On leaflet, with a print run of 5,000 was produced. This covered the 
period from July to September 2013 and featured Eastleigh Museum, Bursledon Windmill, Westbury Manor 
Museum, Gosport Discovery Centre and Gosport Gallery. It was professionally distributed throughout the 
region. In August a new edition was produced covering the period October 2013 to January 2014. The print 
run was increased to 10,000 to cover the longer period and distribution has now commenced. 

  

50,000 copies of a special 48 page bumper edition of ‘Enjoy Hampshire Museums’ were printed in March 
2013. It includes museums throughout Hampshire, was designed to appeal to both residents and tourists 
alike and contains a number of vouchers so its effectiveness can be monitored. It continues to be 
distributed county-wide to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres, supermarkets etc. 

Meet the Victorians exhibition at Eastleigh Museum (27 July til 19 October) was chosen as a pilot venue for 
a door drop designed to attract families to the museum to visit the exhibition. Specific Mosaic groups, 
containing  high proportions of families with primary age school children were targeted via an insert in a 
local paper; 14,000 copies of an A5 flyer, featuring the exhibition and a prize draw to win a culture-all 
passport, worth £75, were distributed in early August. Entries to the prize draw close on 19 October and 
results will be analysed then.  

  

Online marketing: 
  
Events at Eastleigh Museum and Bursledon Windmill were promoted on a monthly basis via the Hampshire 
County Council cultural e-newsletter, Showcase. With new people signing up all the time, Showcase is now 
reaching over 30,000 subscribers. It regularly features both an exhibition and an object of the month as well 
as signposting recipients to events in the their local area. In addition, the monthly e-newsletter Museums 
Monthly is sent to nearly 12,000 subscribers who have asked to receive museums specific information.  
  
Research: 

  
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at key sites over two 3 monthly periods - January to 
March and June to August. In order to capture enough data the collection period at Bursledon Windmill has 
run from January to August. Postcodes are profiled using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information 
on which groups of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor profiles compare 
to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning processes.  

  
Social Media: 
  
The face book page and twitter feed set up by the exhibitions team at Chilcomb House to promote 
exhibitions and events at Museums Service sites are now well established. Facebook now has almost 950 
“likes” and twitter over 1500 followers.  
 

 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Dated                                
 
 
 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

- and - 
 

EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

- and - 
 

BURSLEDON PARISH COUNCIL 
 
 

JOINT MANAGEMENT A G R E E M E N T 
 
 

In Part I relating to the constitution of 
The Museum Committee and the occupation of Museum Premises at 

25 High Street, Eastleigh, Hampshire SO50 5LF  
 

In Part II relating to the constitution of  The Windmill Committee and the 
occupation of Windmill Premises at Windmill Lane Bursledon, 

Hampshire SO31 8BG 
 

In Part III terms common to the occupation of The Museum and the 
Windmill Premises

Agenda Item 5

17



 

 

This JOINT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT is made the   day of 
    201[  ] 

 
BETWEEN: 

 
(1) Hampshire County Council (hereinafter called “HCC”) of The 

Castle, Winchester, Hampshire SO23 8UJ; and  
 

(2)  Eastleigh Borough Council (hereinafter called “EBC”) of Civic 
Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN; and  

 
(3)  Bursledon Parish Council (hereinafter called “BPC”) of Village Hall 

Lane, Bursledon. Southampton. SO31 8BZ. 
 
Hereinafter referred to as “the Parties”. 

 
WHEREAS: 
 
(1) By virtue of Sections 12 and 14 of the Public Libraries and Museums Act 

1964 and Sections 206 to 208 of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
Parties are each empowered to provide or contribute towards the provision 
of museums. 

 
(2) By virtue of Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Parties are 

each empowered to discharge any of their functions jointly with one or 
more other local authorities and where arrangements are in force for them 
to do so they may also arrange for the discharge of those functions by 
(inter alia) a joint committee of theirs. 

 
(3) Pursuant to the aforementioned powers and all other powers enabling 

them in that behalf the Parties have agreed to provide a museum at 
Eastleigh and a windmill at Bursledon in the manner and on the terms 
hereinafter appearing. 

 
NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH as follows: 
 
PART 1 – EASTLEIGH MUSEUM 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 HCC and EBC (hereinafter referred to together as ‘’Parties to the 

Museum agreement’’) agree to provide and maintain a museum 
(hereinafter called “the Museum”) at Eastleigh in the premises known 
as 25 High Street, Eastleigh, Hampshire SO50 5LF and shown edged 
red on the Museum plan attached hereto (hereinafter called “the 
Museum Premises”) for the Term and on the terms and conditions 
hereinafter contained. 

 

18



 

 

1.2 The Museum Premises are in the freehold ownership of HCC and are 
made available for the use as a museum on the terms contained in 
Part I and Part III of this Agreement. 

 
2.  TERM  
 
2.1 Subject to the HCC’s and EBC’s rights of prior termination referred to in 

Clauses 6 and 7 this Agreement shall be in force for a period of [10 ] 
years from [  ]. 

 
2.2 At the mutual agreement of HCC and EBC Part I of this Agreement 

may be renewed for a further period with terms and conditions to be 
agreed. 

 
 
3. THE COMMITTEE 
 
3.1 Subject to the provisions of Part I of this Agreement the management 

of the Museum Premises and the Museum and all matters relating 
thereto shall be vested in a committee referred to as the Eastleigh 
Museum Committee (hereinafter called “the Museum Committee”) 
constituted under the provisions of Section 102 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
3.2 The Museum Committee shall comprise of a maximum of 2 

representatives elected by HCC and a maximum of 2 representatives 
elected by EBC. 

 
3.3 If at any time any representative member being an elected member of 

the appointing Council shall cease to be a member of the Council by 
whom he was appointed to the Museum Committee his membership of 
the Museum Committee shall forthwith determine. 

 
3.4 If by reason of death resignation loss of qualification cesser of 

membership of the appointing Council or in any other manner there 
shall be a vacancy in the number of representatives hereto allowed 
under the terms of Part I of this Agreement for the time being the 
Council in whose representation the vacancy occurs shall forthwith 
appoint a representative to fill such vacancy and the person so 
appointed shall hold office as a member of the Museum Committee 
until such time as the person whose place he fills would normally have 
retired and he shall then retire. 

 
3.5 The Chairman of the Museum Committee shall be appointed annually 

by the Museum Committee at the meeting next convened after the 
expiration of one year from the last annual appointment.  The 
Chairmanship shall alternate annually between the parties hereto.  The 
Vice-Chairman shall also be elected annually at the same time as the 
Chairman and shall always be appointed from that Council which does 
not provide the Chairman.  In the event of a casual vacancy in the 

19



 

 

Chairmanship or Vice-Chairmanship the Museum Committee shall 
elect a Chairman or Vice-Chairman as the case may be from the 
Authority which provided the outgoing Chairman or Vice-Chairman as 
the case may be to hold office until the time when the position would 
ordinarily become vacant. 

 
3.6 The Museum Committee shall hold two meetings at least in every year 

for the transaction of general business and may hold such other 
meetings at such intervals as they shall find necessary or convenient.  
The Museum Committee may make standing orders regulating the 
procedure at their meetings and such standing orders if made may 
provide (inter alia) for the election of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman, 
for a method of voting and as to the quorum and place of meeting.  The 
Museum Committee shall have power to appoint Sub-Committees from 
amongst its members for any purpose which in its opinion could better 
be managed or considered by means of a Sub-Committee and may 
make standing orders as to the membership quorum and place of 
meetings and generally as to the proceedings of any Sub-Committee. 

 
3.7 The Director of Administration for the time being of EBC shall be the 

Secretary to the Museum Committee and shall be responsible for the 
preparation of all agenda and minutes. 

 
3.8 The responsibility for the financial administration of the Museum shall 

be discharged by the County Treasurer in accordance with HCC’s 
Financial Regulations. 

 
3.9 In accordance with the provisions of clause 3.1 hereof all matters of 

policy relating to the Museum shall be determined by the Museum 
Committee (including its collection exhibition and education policy). 

 
3.10 Provided always and for the avoidance of doubt it is hereby declared 

that this clause is intended to provide for the making and declaration of 
policy by the Museum Committee but that any such policies may only 
be put into effect insofar as they necessitate expenditure if such 
expenditure is either provided for in the revenue estimates approved by 
the parties hereto in accordance with Clause 4. 

 
 
 
4. FUNDING AND EXPENDITURE 
 
4.1 HCC and EBC shall, in so far as they can commit future budgets, 

contribute the funding set out in clause 4.2 below. 
 
4.2     For three (3) years starting on the commencement of the Term: 
 

4.2.1 HCC shall provide an annual contribution of [£TBA]; 
4.2.2 EBC shall provide an annual contribution of [£TBA]. 
 

20



 

 

4.3 After a period of three years the parties shall strive to commit to 
continue funding the Museum in the funding ratios set out in clause 4.4 

 
4.4 The funding ratio between HCC and EBC will be: 
 

4.4.1 [50]% provided by HCC; 
4.4.2 [50]% provided by EBC. 
 

4.5 HCC shall invoice the EBC on an annual basis for the funding set out in 
clause above. Upon receipt of the invoice EBC shall pay the amount 
due within 30 days. 

 
4.6 HCC shall prepare the revenue budget which shall be reviewed 

annually and approved by the Museum Committee. 
 
4.7 HCC and EBC shall contribute equally to all expenses incurred in the 

running of the Museum included in the revenue budget as approved by 
HCC and EBC hereto.  By way of example and not so as to effect the 
generality of the clause the cost of electricity, gas, water and sewerage 
services, internal and external repairs and decoration, venue 
management, exhibitions, collections, learning and community 
engagement, maintenance, management and marketing fall within this 
clause. 

 
4.8 If at any stage during the Term it appears that the estimate of revenue 

expenditure will exceed the estimate or income will be less than the 
estimate such overspending or shortfall in income shall be split equally 
between HCC and EBC.  

 
4.9 Any proposed expenditure which either HCC or EBC hereto considers 

to be of a capital nature shall if approved by the Museum Committee 
be submitted to the appropriate Committee of EBC if required by the 
Treasurer for the time being of that Council or to the appropriate 
Committees of HCC if required by the Treasurer for the time being of 
that Council and shall be considered by any such Committees with a 
view to its being approved and included in the Capital Works 
Programme of the Council concerned. 

 
4.10 If it appears that any such expenditure as is referred to in 4.9 above will 

exceed the estimate then the additional expenditure shall be split 
equally between HCC and EBC.  

 
5. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
5.1     HCC shall be responsible for 
 

the selection deployment and control of staff and equipment artefacts 
and other resources in the Museum shall be the responsibility of the 
Head of the County Arts and Museums Service (“the Director”) as a 

21



 

 

professional officer of HCC.  The appointment of the Curator shall 
however be made by the Museum Committee. 

 
5.2 All staff directly employed in connection with the Museum by HCC shall 

be employees of HCC. 
 
5.3 In fulfilling its roles and responsibilities under this Clause HCC may 

engage a third party to assist with the running of the Museum.   
 
5.4 All staff directly employed in connection with the Museum by EBC shall 

be employees of EBC. 
  
5.5 The Director shall: 
 

5.5.1 maintain a list of all artefacts which are acquired or donated for 
use in the Museum with a note identifying the same with the 
Museum and shall record the name and address of the owner 
of the same. 
 

5.5.2 maintain a list of all furniture and other equipment acquired for 
use in the Museum and shall record any disposals of the same 
(whether by sale or otherwise) and in the case of clause 5.6.1 
and this clause EBC shall have the right at all reasonable 
times on giving reasonable notice to the said Director to 
inspect the said records and take copies thereof. 

 
5.6 The accounts of the Museum Committee shall be externally audited by 

the Audit Commission. 
 

 
6. USE OF THE MUSEUM PREMISES 
 
6.1 The terms upon which the Museum Premises shall be used by HCC 

and EBC to provide and maintain the Museum hereto shall be as 
follows: 

  
6.1.1 The Museum shall be used as a public amenity and will display 

artefacts and objects both belonging to HCC’s Collection and 
artefacts and objects loaned to HCC. The Museum will host 
temporary exhibitions, events, educational activities and other 
activities for the public from time to time as programmed by 
HCC.  

 
6.1.2 It is hereby expressly agreed that nothing herein contained shall 

or shall be deemed to create a tenancy of the Museum 
Premises or any other right therein other than a right for HCC or 
EBC hereto to use the Museum Premises for the period of the 
Agreement on the terms herein contained. 

 
7. TERMINATION 

22



 

 

 
7.1 HCC or EBC may terminate its interest in this Part I of this Agreement 

upon providing eighteen (18) months’ written notice (‘Termination 
Notice’) to the other Party. 

 
7.2 In the event that a party to this Agreement is in default of Part I or Part 

III and, upon being notified of the default, has not remedied the default 
within thirty (30) days of being notified, the Defaulting Party’s interest in 
this Agreement shall terminate immediately. 
 

7.3 In the event that a Party is in default (‘the Defaulting Party’) of Part I or 
Part III of the Agreement and the default is not capable of remedy the 
Defaulting Party’s interest in this Museum Agreement shall terminate 
immediately. 

 
7.4  Upon a Termination Notice being served in accordance with clause 7.1 

the Parties shall continue to operate the Museum until eighteen (18) 
months from the date of the Termination Notice (the ‘Termination 
Period’). 
 

7.5 The remaining Party shall not be bound to continue to operate the 
Museum for the remainder of the Term and can give notice to terminate 
its interest in the Agreement at the end of the Termination Period. 

 
7.6 Where the remaining Party elects to continue to operate the Museum 

for the remainder of the Term the management thereof as defined in 
clause 3.1 and the liability to pay all costs and expenses of whatsoever 
nature (including the costs of maintenance of the Museum Premises) 
shall become the responsibility of the remaining Party from the 
expiration of the Termination Period whereupon the Museum 
Committee shall cease to manage the Museum. 

 
7.7 In the event that EBC elects to continue to operate the Museum for the 

remainder of the Term HCC shall have discretion to determine whether 
it shall enter in to an agreement with EBC to continue to make the 
Museum Premises available to EBC on such terms as may be mutually 
agreed upon by way of a licence to occupy for the remainder of the 
Term. 

 
7.8 Where the terminating Party holds the positions of Chairman Vice-

Chairman or Secretary to the Museum Committee the remaining Party 
to the agreement shall elect a new Chairman Vice-Chairman and 
Secretary at its next meeting. 

 
7.9 Upon termination of Part I of this Agreement neither HCC or EBC shall 

be entitled to compensation of any sort by virtue of its interest in the 
Museum Premises under this Agreement having termination nor shall 
the Party upon which a Termination Notice is served be entitled to 
compensation of any sort regardless of whether or not the party on 
which the notice is served elects to continue operating the Museum. 

23



 

 

7.10 From the expiration of the Termination Notice the terminating Party’s 
membership on the Museum Committee will determine and where the 
remaining Parties elect to continue the operation of the Museum in 
accordance with Clause 7.6 they will have the full management of the 
Museum and the liability to pay all costs and expenses of whatsoever 
nature (including the costs of maintenance of the Museum Premises).   

 
 
 
 
8. EFFECT OF TERMINATION OF PART I OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
8.1 On the expiration of the Agreement by effluxion of time or on the 

sooner determination thereof any artefacts or exhibits belonging to 
either Party to the Museum Agreement may be removed from the 
Museum by that Party but if the Museum is to continue to be operated 
by the other Party hereto in accordance with the provisions in that 
behalf hereinbefore contained the Parties to the Museum Agreement 
hereby agree to the continued use by the Party continuing to operate 
the Museum of the artefacts or exhibits for the remainder of the period 
which this Agreement is intended to run on such reasonable conditions 
as they shall agree.  The artefacts referred to in this clause are those 
which were normally kept in the Museum during the period of three (3) 
months immediately prior to the service of the notice of termination 
which results in the termination of this Part I of the Agreement and 
such other artefacts as may be agreed upon. 

 
8.2 The termination of Part I of the agreement in accordance with clause 7 

shall not in any way affect the relationship,r rights or obligations of any 
of the Parties or in anyway affect the terms and conditions applying 
between the Parties in Part III of this agreement.    

 

24



 

 

PART II – BURSLEDON WINDMILL  
 
9. PURPOSE 
 
9.1 The Parties agree to provide and maintain Bursledon  Windmill 

(hereinafter called “the Windmill”) in Bursledon at [  ] and 
shown edged red on the Windmill plan attached hereto (hereinafter 
called “the Windmill Premises”) for the Term and on the terms and 
conditions hereinafter contained. 

 
9.2 The Windmill Premises are in the freehold ownership of Hampshire 

Preservation Trust. HCC has a leasehold interest in the Windmill 
Premises and HCC shall make the Windmill available for the use on 
the terms contained in this Agreement. 

 
10.  TERM  
 
10.1 Subject to The Parties rights of prior termination referred to in Clauses 

15 and 16 Part II of this Agreement shall be in force for a period of [10
  ] years from [  ]. 

 
10.2 At mutual agreement of the Parties Part II of this Agreement may be  

renewed for a further period with terms and conditions to be agreed. 
 
 
11. THE COMMITTEE 
 
11.1 Subject to the provisions of this Agreement the management of the 

Windmill Premises and the Windmill and all matters relating thereto 
shall be vested in a committee referred to as the Bursledon Windmill 
Committee (hereinafter called “the Windmill Committee”) constituted 
under the provisions of Section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
11.2 The Windmill Committee shall comprise of a maximum of 2 

representatives elected by HCC, a maximum of 2 representatives 
elected by EBC and a maximum of 2 representatives elected by BPC. 

 
11.3 If at any time any representative member being an elected member of  

the appointing Council shall cease to be a member of the Council by 
whom he was appointed to the Committee his membership of the 
Committee shall forthwith determine. 

 
11.4 If by reason of death resignation loss of qualification cesser of 

membership of the appointing Council or in any other manner there 
shall be a vacancy in the number of representatives hereto allowed 
under the terms of this Agreement for the time being the Council in 
whose representation the vacancy occurs shall forthwith appoint a 
representative to fill such vacancy and the person so appointed shall 
hold office as a member of the Windmill Committee until such time as 

25



 

 

the person whose place he fills would normally have retired and he 
shall then retire. 

 
11.5 The Chairman of the Windmill Committee shall be appointed annually 

by the Windmill Committee at the meeting next after the expiration of 
one year from the last annual appointment.  The Chairmanship shall 
alternate annually between the parties hereto.  The Vice-Chairman 
shall also be elected annually at the same time as the Chairman and 
shall always be appointed from that Council which does not provide the 
Chairman.  In the event of a casual vacancy in the Chairmanship or 
Vice-Chairmanship the Windmill Committee shall elect a Chairman or 
Vice-Chairman as the case may be from the Authority which provided 
the outgoing Chairman or Vice-Chairman as the case may be to hold 
office until the time when the position would ordinarily become vacant. 

 
11.6 The Windmill Committee shall hold two meetings at least in every year 

for the transaction of general business and may hold such other 
meetings at such intervals as they shall find necessary or convenient.  
The Windmill Committee may make standing orders regulating the 
procedure at their meetings and such standing orders if made may 
provide (inter alia) for the election of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman, 
for a method of voting and as to the quorum and place of meeting.  The 
Windmill Committee shall have power to appoint Sub-Committees from 
amongst its members for any purpose which in its opinion could better 
be managed or considered by means of a Sub-Committee and may 
make standing orders as to the membership quorum and place of 
meetings and generally as to the proceedings of any Sub-Committee. 

 
11.7 The Director of Administration for the time being of BPC shall be the 

Secretary to the Windmill Committee and shall be responsible for the 
preparation of all agenda and minutes. 

 
11.8 The responsibility for the financial administration of the Windmill shall 

be discharged by the County Treasurer in accordance with HCC’s 
Financial Regulations. 

 
11.9 In accordance with the provisions of clause 11.1 hereof all matters of 

policy relating to the Windmill shall be determined by the Committee 
(including its collection exhibition and education policy). 

 
11.10 Provided always and for the avoidance of doubt it is hereby declared 

that this clause is intended to provide for the making and declaration of 
policy by the Windmill Committee but that any such policies may only 
be put into effect insofar as they necessitate expenditure if such 
expenditure is either provided for in the revenue estimates approved by 
the parties hereto in accordance with Clause 11. 

 
11.11  
 
11.13   

26



 

 

    
 
 
12. FUNDING AND EXPENDITURE 
 
12.1 The Parties shall, in so far as they can commit future budgets,  

contribute the funding set out in clause 9.2 below. 
 
12.2 For three (3) years starting on the commencement of the Term: 
 

12.2.1 HCC shall provide an annual contribution of [£TBA]; 
12.2.2 EBC shall provide an annual contribution of [£TBA]; 
12.2.3 BPC shall provide an annual contribution of [£TBA]. 

 
12.3 After a period of three years the parties shall strive to commit to 

continue funding the Windmill in the funding ratios set out in clause 3.4. 
 
12.3 The funding ratio between the Parties will be: 
 

12.3.1  [ ]% provided by HCC; 
12.3.2  [ ]% provided by EBC; 
 12.3.3  [ ]% provided by BPC. 
 

12.4 HCC shall invoice EBC and BPC on an annual basis for the funding set 
out in clause 12.3 above. Upon receipt of an invoice from HCC, EBC 
and BPC shall pay the amount due within 30 days. 

 
12.5 HCC shall prepare the revenue budget which shall be reviewed 

annually and approved by the Committee. 
 
12.6 The Parties shall contribute equally to all expenses incurred in the 

running of the Windmill included in the revenue budget as approved by 
the Parties hereto.  By way of example and not so as to effect the 
generality of the clause the cost of electricity, gas, water and sewerage 
services, internal and external repairs and decoration, venue 
management, exhibitions, collections, learning and community 
engagement, maintenance, management and marketing fall within this 
clause. 

 
12.7 If at any stage during the Term it appears that the estimate of revenue 

expenditure will exceed the estimate or income will be less than the 
estimate such overspending or shortfall in income shall be split equally 
between the Parties.  

 
12.8 Any proposed expenditure which any party hereto considers to be of a 

capital nature shall if approved by the Committee be submitted to the 
appropriate Committee of BPC if required by the Treasurer for the time 
being of that Council or to the appropriate Committees of HCC if 
required by the Treasurer for the time being of that Council and shall be 
considered by any such Committees with a view to its being approved 

27



 

 

and included in the Capital Works Programme of the Council 
concerned. 

 
12.9 If it appears that any such expenditure as is referred to in 9.9 above will 

exceed the estimate then the additional expenditure shall be split 
equally between the Parties.  

 
13. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
14. USE OF THE WINDMILL PREMISES 
 
14.1 The terms upon which the Windmill Premises shall be used by the 

Parties to provide and maintain the Windmill hereto shall be as follows: 
  
14.2 The Windmill shall be used as a public amenity and will display 

artefacts and objects both belonging to HCC’s Collection and artefacts 
and objects loaned to HCC. The Windmill will host temporary 
exhibitions, events, educational activities and other activities for the 
public from time to time as programmed by HCC.  

 
14.3 It is hereby expressly agreed that nothing herein contained shall or 

shall be deemed to create a tenancy of the Windmill Premises or any 
other right therein other than a right for the Parties hereto to use the 
Windmill Premises for the period of the Agreement on the terms herein 
contained. 

 
15. TERMINATION 
 
15.1 HCC or EBC may terminate its interest in this Part II of this Agreement 

upon providing eighteen (18) months’ written notice (Termination 
Notice)  to the other Party.  

15.2 In the event that a Party is in default of Part II or Part III and upon being 
notified of the default has not remedied the default within (30) days of 
of being notified the defaulting Party’s interest in this  
WindmillAgreement shall  terminate immediately. 

 
15.3 In the event that a Party is in default (‘the Defaulting Party’) of Part II or 

Part III of the Agreement and the default is not capable of remedy the 
Defaulting Party’s interest in this Windmill Agreement shall terminate 
immediately. 

 
15.4  Upon a Termination Notice being served in accordance with clause 

15.1 the Parties shall continue to operate the Windmill until eighteen 
(18) months from the date of the Termination Notice (the ‘Termination 
Period’). 
 

15.5 The remaining Parties shall not be bound to continue to operate the 
Windmill for the remainder of the Term and can give notice to terminate 
its interest in the Agreement at the end of the Termination Period. 

28



 

 

 
15.6 Where the remaining Parties elect to continue to operate the Windmill 

for the remainder of the Term the management thereof as defined in 
clause 15.1 and the liability to pay all costs and expenses of 
whatsoever nature (including the costs of maintenance of the Windmill 
Premises) shall become the responsibility of the remaining Parties from 
the expiration of the Termination Period whereupon the Windmill 
Committee shall cease to cease to manage the Windmill. 

 
15.7 In the event that EBC and/or BPC elect to continue to operate the 

Windmill for the remainder of the Term HCC shall have discretion to 
determine whether it shall enter in to an agreement with EBC and/or 
BPC to continue to make the Windmill Premises available to EBC 
and/or BPC on such terms as may be mutually agreed upon by way of 
a licence to occupy for the remainder of the Term. 

 
15.8 Where the terminating Party holds the positions of Chairman Vice-

Chairman or Secretary to the Museum Committee the remaining 
Parties to the agreement shall elect a new Chairman Vice-Chairman 
and Secretary at its next meeting. 

 
15.9 Upon termination of Part II of this Agreement no Party shall be entitled 

to compensation of any sort by virtue of its interest in the Windmill 
Premises under this Agreement having termination nor shall the Parties  
upon which a Termination Notice is served be entitled to compensation 
of any sort regardless of whether or not the party on which the notice is 
served elects to continue operating the Windmill. 

 
15.10 From the expiration of the Termination Notice the terminating Party’s 

membership on the Windmill Committee will determine and where the 
remaining Parties elect to continue the operation of the Windmill in 
accordance with Clause 15.6 they will have the full management of the 
Windmill and the liability to pay all costs and expenses of whatsoever 
nature (including the costs of maintenance of the Windmill Premises).   

 
 
 
 
16. EFFECT OF TERMINATION 
 
16.1 On the expiration of the Agreement by effluxion of time or on the 

sooner determination thereof any artefacts or exhibits belonging to any 
Party hereto may be removed from the Windmill by that Party but if the 
Windmill is to continue to be operated by the other Parties  hereto in 
accordance with the provisions in that behalf hereinbefore contained 
the Parties hereby agree to the continued use by the Party or Parties 
continuing to operate the Windmill of the artefacts or exhibits for the 
remainder of the period which this Agreement is intended to run on 
such reasonable conditions as they shall agree.  The artefacts referred 
to in this clause are those which were normally kept in the Windmill 

29



 

 

during the period of three (3) months immediately prior to the service of 
the notice of termination which results in the termination of this 
Agreement and such other artefacts as may be agreed upon. 

 
16.2 The termination of Part II of the agreement in accordance with clause 

15 of Part II shall not in any way affect the relationship or rights or 
obligations of any of the parties as described in Part II o the agreement 
or in anyway affect the terms and conditions applying between the 
parties in Part III of this agreement.    

 
17. INSURANCE OF THE WINDMILL 
 

30



 

 

PART III - GENERAL 
 
17. RISK 
 
17.1 HCC shall bear the risks to the Museum and Windmill for loss or 

damage by fire lightning explosion storm tempest flood bursting or 
overflowing of water tanks apparatus or pipes earthquake aircraft and 
other aerial devices or articles dropped there from riot and civil 
commotion (excluding any loss or damage caused by ionising 
radiations or contamination by radioactivity from any nuclear fuel or 
from any nuclear waste from the combustion of nuclear fuel radioactive 
toxic explosive or other hazardous properties of any explosive nuclear 
assembly or nuclear component thereof, pressure waves caused by 
aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds) 
together with theft, employers liability and third party risks.    

 

18.  INSURANCE 

18.1 HCC will via its self-insurance provide:  

 18.1.1 buildings insurance in respect of the Museum and Windmill; 

 18.1.2 employers liability insurance in respect of staff employed by 
HCC carrying out their activities at the Museum and Windmill; 

 18.1.3 public liability insurance in respect of activities undertaken by 
HCC; 

 18.1.4 contents insurance. 

 
18.2 Prior to HCC taking out any additional insurance policy in connection 

with the operation of the Museum or the Windmill this shall be 
discussed and agreed between the Parties and the cost of the policy 
shall be split equally between HCC and EBC in relation to the Museum 
and between HCC, EBC and BPC in respect of the Windmill.   

 
19.  MISCELLANEOUS 
 
19.1 HCC shall not be liable for the death of or injury to any employee of 

EBC or BPC or any other person using entering or present at the 
Museum Premises or Windmill Premises during the Term or for the 
death of or injury to any other person as a result of the use of the 
Museum Premises or Windmill Premises or for damage to any property 
of any such persons or for any losses, claims, demands, actions, 
proceedings, damages, costs or expenses or other liability incurred by 
EBC or BPC in connection with this Agreement.  

 
 

31



 

 

19.2 Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing 
and any notice shall be deemed to be sufficiently served if addressed 
to the Party and sent by registered or recorded delivery post to the 
party at its address as stated in this Agreement or such other address 
as may be notified to the other party in writing and any notice so sent 
by post shall be deemed to be given at the time when it ought in due 
course of post to be delivered at the address to which it is sent. 

 
19.3 None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to or will operate 

to confer any benefit pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) 
Act 1999 on a person who is not named as a party to this Agreement. 

 
19.4 This Agreement is personal to the Parties and shall not be assigned or 

novated without written consent of the Parties.  
 
19.5 This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with 

English Law and subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English 
Courts to which the Parties hereby submit. 

 
 

32



 

 

IN WITNESS this Agreement has been executed as a Deed by the Parties on 
the date of this Agreement 
 
Executed as a Deed by Hampshire County Council 

The COMMON SEAL of     ) 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL   ) 

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 

 

Signed:        

Position  _____________________________ 
 

 

Executed as a Deed by Eastleigh Borough Council 

The COMMON SEAL of     ) 

EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL   ) 

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:-  ) 

 
 

Signed:        

Position  _____________________________ 
 
 
 
Executed as a Deed by Bursledon Parish Council ) 

The COMMON SEAL of     ) 

EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL   ) 

Was hereunto affixed in the presence of.-  ) 

 
Signed:        

Position  _____________________________ 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Budget Update
	5 Eastleigh Museum/Bursledon Windmill Draft Joint Management Agreement

